
2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5400    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 

E-mail: wywong@CityofBerkeley.info

Human Welfare and Community Action Commission 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, April 20, 2016 

7:00 PM 
South Berkeley Senior Center, 2939 Ellis St. (Corner Ellis/Ashby) 

Berkeley, CA 94703 

Preliminary Matters 

1. Roll Call
2. Public Comment

Update/Action Items 
The Commission may take action related to any subject listed on the agenda, except 
where noted. 

3. Approve Minutes from the 3/16/2016 Regular Meeting (Attachment A)

4. Update on Recommendations By Homeless Task Force (Attachment B)

5. Update on Commission Process Improvement Resolution

6. Update on Berkeley Community Services Fund Resolution

7. Update on Filling HWCAC Vacancies

8. Update on Partnership with Alameda County-Oakland Community Action
Partnership (AC-OCAP) to Administer Community Services Block Grant (CSBG)
Funds

9. Review CSBG Work Plan (Attachment C)

10. Update on Air Quality in West Berkeley (Attachment D)

11. Review Safe-Act Council Report (Fishman) (Attachment E)

12. Discuss Impacts of Coal Exportation on the City of Berkeley’s Communities

13. Review Minutes from Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts
(SSBPPE) (Attachment F )

14. Discuss Possible Action Regarding Bikers Not Using Reflectors at Night

15. Review Latest City Council Meeting Agenda (Attachment G)

Adjournment 

Attachments 
A. Draft Minutes of the 3/16/2016 Meeting
B. Berkeley Homeless Taskforce Developments
C. CSBG Work Plan (To be distributed at meeting)

mailto:rmolina@CityofBerkeley.info


Agenda – HWCAC
April 20, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

D. West Berkeley Air Quality
E. Safe Act
F. Minutes from SSBPPE meetings
G. Review City Council Meeting Agenda at City Clerk Dept. or

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil

Communications 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s 
electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City 
board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address 

or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in 
person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee.  If you do not want your contact information 
included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the 
secretary to the relevant board, commission or committee for further information.  Any writings or documents provided 
to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at 
Housing and Community Services Department located at 2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor. 

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to 
participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-
6342 (V) or 981-6345 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  Please refrain from wearing 
scented products to this meeting. 

Secretary:   
Wing Wong 
Health, Housing & Community Services Department 
510-981-5428
wywong@CityofBerkeley.info

Mailing Address: 
Human Welfare and Community Action Commission 
Wing Wong, Secretary 
2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor 
Berkeley, CA 94704 

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
mailto:rmolina@CityofBerkeley.info


Human Welfare and Community Action Commission 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Wednesday, March 16, 2016 

7:00 PM 
South Berkeley Senior Center, 2939 Ellis St. (Corner Ellis/Ashby) 

Berkeley, CA 94703 

Preliminary Matters 

1. Roll Call: 7:10 PM
Present: Dunner, Bookstein, Sood, DaSilva, Fishman, Browne (7:30PM)
Absent: Omodele, McMullan, Trigueros
Quorum: 5 (Attended: 6)
Staff Present: Paul Buddenhagen, Kristen Lee, Wing Wong

2. Public Present: 3
Public Comment: 2

Update/Action Items 
The Commission may take action related to any subject listed on the agenda, except 
where noted. 

3. Approve Minutes from the 1/27/2016 Special Meeting and 2/17/2016 Regular
Meeting (Attachment A)
Action: M/S/C (Sood/Fishman) to approve the 1/27/2016 minutes as submitted
Vote: Ayes –  Dunner, Bookstein, Sood, DaSilva, Fishman; Noes – None;
Abstain – None; Absent – Browne, Omodele, McMullan, Trigueros.

Action: M/S/C (Dunner/Sood) to approve the 2/17/2016 minutes as submitted
Vote: Ayes –  Dunner, Bookstein, Sood, DaSilva, Fishman; Noes – None;
Abstain – None; Absent – Browne, Omodele, McMullan, Trigueros.

4. Presentation By California Public Utilities Commission on Consumer Programs
(Attachment B)
Presenter cancelled presentation.

5. Update on Commission Process Improvement Resolution
Secretary has sent the current report to other commissions and 5 of them have
put it on their agenda.

Action: M/S/C (Sood/DaSilva) to replace current language with new language.
Vote: Ayes –  Sood, DaSilva, Fishman, Browne; Noes – Dunner, Bookstein;
Abstain – None; Absent – Omodele, McMullan, Trigueros.
Action failed and the report with current language will be submitted to City
Council.

6. Update on Berkeley Community Services Fund Resolution
Discussion held. No action taken. Continued to 4/20/2016 meeting.

7. Update on Filling HWCAC Vacancies
Speaker: 1
Ms. Cheryl Davila was elected in November 2015. City Council will confirm her
appointment on 3/29/2016.

2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5400    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 

E-mail: wywong@CityofBerkeley.info

Attachment A

mailto:rmolina@CityofBerkeley.info


Draft Minutes – HWCAC 
March 16, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

Action: M/S/C (Sood/Browne) to authorize the Chair to write a communication 
urging City Council to take action on 3/29/2016 regarding Ms. Davila’s 
confirmation.   
Vote: Ayes – Dunner, Bookstein, Sood, Fishman, Browne; Noes – DaSilva; 
Abstain – None; Absent – Omodele, McMullan, Trigueros.  

8. Update on Partnership with Alameda County-Oakland Community Action
Partnership (AC-OCAP) to Administer Community Services Block Grant (CSBG)
Funds
Kristen updated the commissioners on the following:

A. If AC-OCAP administers CSBG funds for Berkeley and Council approves
the staff recommendation, the HWCAC will become an eighteen-member
Commission, with two appointments per council district and one of which
would be a low-income resident.

B. Berkeley would have two to three seats on the twelve-member AC-OCAP
Board. This will be stipulated in the MOU with Oakland.

C. City Council will discuss this proposal on 3/29/2016.

9. Update on Air Quality in West Berkeley
Speaker: 1

A speaker from West Berkeley talked about a court order in 1999 and use permit. 
She reported that the Final Status Report reviewed by City Council on 3/8/2016 
did not consult the West Berkeley community.  

Action: M/S/C (Sood/Dunner) to directCommissioner McMullan to draft a letter to 
Council for the 2/17/2016 meeting  which would include A) disclosing the specific 
tests that were undertaken; B) the fact that truck loading continues to be 
dangerous to the surrounding community because the base is not being 
enclosed; C) the City should consult neighbors on where the censors monitor air 
quality are placed; and D) the City should consult the West Berkeley Community 
regarding their analysis in the Final Status Report. 
Vote: Ayes – Dunner, Bookstein, Sood, Fishman, Browne, DaSilva; Noes – 
None; Abstain – None; Absent – Omodele, McMullan, Trigueros.  

10. Review Safe-Act Council Report (Fishman)
Draft report reviewed and discussion held. No action taken. Continued to
4/20/2016 meeting.

11. Discuss Impacts of Coal Exportation on the City of Berkeley’s Communities
Continued to 4/20/2016 meeting.

12. Review Minutes from Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts
(SSBPPE) (Attachment C)
Continued to 4/20/2016 meeting.

13. Information on Friends of Adeline, A Neighborhood Organization in South
Berkeley (Attachment D)



Draft Minutes – HWCAC 
March 16, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

Continued to 4/20/2016. 

14. Discuss Possible Action Regarding Bikers Not Using Reflectors at Night
Continued to 4/20/2016.

15. Review Latest City Council Meeting Agenda (Attachment E)
Continued to 4/20/2016.

Adjournment 

Adjourned at: 9:30 pm 

Minutes approved on: ______________________  

Commission Secretary: _______________________ 

Wing Wong 



Berkeley Homeless Taskforce (BHTF) Developments 
Updated April 7th, 2016 

1. Tier 1 Recommendations Referred to City Manager and In Planning Stages
On February 9th, 2016, two BHTF Final Report Tier 1 Recommendations were referred to the
City Manager for analysis in time for the FY 16-17 Mid-Biennial Budget Process:

• Expand city Homeless Outreach Team staff
• Expand the city’s Mobile Crisis Team to provide 24/7 coverage

The remaining Tier 1 Recommendations (increasing Crisis Intervention Training Funds, Storage 
Space, and Warming Centers) have already been referred to the City Manager for analysis, and 
planning is now underway. 

2. Tier 2 Recommendations
The BHTF met on March 21st to discuss the Tier 2 Recommendations, which include: 1)
Rehabilitation, Renting Vacant Homes and Multi-Family Buildings for Homeless Housing, 2)
Short-term Shelter and Navigation Center model, and 3) Alternative Housing Options.

It was decided that we focus on advocating for Tiny Homes because a very clear consensus for
this approach has developed in the community. With this momentum, at the very least a pilot
project can be accomplished. Members also voiced wanting to consider a transitional shelter
pilot similar to San Francisco's Mission Street Navigation Center as well as the possibility of
housing people in local warehouses. Questions concerning both of these approaches will be
researched by our steering committee for discussion at a future meeting.

Council voted on April 5th referring the Homeless Commission to examine 'Tiny House’
programs for residentially challenged people, and to report back with recommendations on
whether to create similar programs in Berkeley. Unfortunately, time did not allow for a second
item in response to the Declaration of a Shelter Crisis Emergency to be heard. The item, which
included a referral to staff to perform a city-owned land site suitability analysis for a Tiny House
project, was held over and will be returning to Council shortly.

3. Establishing a Multi-Departmental Homelessness Working Group and Comp Plan
On March 29th the City Council voted to establish a Multi-Departmental Homelessness Working
Group (modeled after the City Sustainability Working Group). They also initiated a public
process to develop a comprehensive plan to address homelessness in Berkeley that will take
into consideration all of the ideas put forward by the Homeless Commission and Homeless Task
Force. The main goal of each will be to create more affordable, transitional and permanent
housing for our homeless population.

4. Supporting and Advocating for the YEAH! and Youth Spirits Artwork Programs
$19,120 in General Funds was allocated to the YEAH! Shelter Program for Young Adults on April
5th. That agenda item was amended so that the remaining funds they need to stay open all
year-round will be considered for approval this fiscal year, rather than during the next
community RFP cycle (which would not be released until November 2016). Additional funding
would mean that YEAH! could remain open after June and not have to close its doors for the
season.

1 

Attachment B



On the April 5th Council agenda, Item #18, City Response to Homeless Shelter Crisis, included 
allocating $15,000 from the General Fund to Youth Spirit Artworks and YEAH! for their Winter 
Warming Program. Doing so would allow them to match private grants already pledged and 
continue to provide daytime services for homeless youth. While the rest of the item was held 
over, this portion was passed. 

5. Collaborating with the Berkeley Public Library to Expand Resources
For months we have been meeting with the Berkeley Public Library’s Homeless Taskforce
Committee and Interim Director, to develop ways they can expand their resources to address
homelessness. In February, we facilitated a tour and discussion with the Hub, and are now
helping the library develop a help desk that will be staffed by a rotating group of homeless
advocates and mental health professionals.  Staff from organizations such as the Hub, Berkeley
Food and Housing Project, YEAH!, BOSS and Youth Spirit Artworks will participate, connecting
those in need of services that already frequent the library with the answers they need. The
presence of expert staff and printed resources will additionally help guide residents that would
like to help but are unsure where to start.

In addition, they are in the process of programming more events that explore and address the
issue of homelessness, including an organization fair with guest speakers.  We are excited to
have played a significant role in connecting these groups and will continue to advise the library
as they move forward with their plans.

6. Continuing the Conversation with the Berkeley Police Department
BHTF Steering Committee members Elliot Halpern and Genevieve Wilson continue to meet with
Captain Andrew Greenwood, BPD's Operations Commander, to discuss concerns related to CIT
and our friends living on the streets. Genevieve and Paul Kealoha-Blake were recently invited to
participate in BPD's Fair and Impartial Policing Training by Dr. Lorie Fridell, which will be held on
April 9th.

7. Upcoming Meeting
Our next BHTF meeting will be March 21st, from 6:30-8:30pm at Lutheran Church of the Cross in
Kinnell Hall (1744 University Ave). We will host presentations from the Berkeley Way Project
Team, the Berkeley Public Library's Homeless Task Force, and conclude with discussion of
anything else relevant to our work at that time.

2 



Attachment D



















































To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Human Welfare and Community Action Commission 

Submitted by: Praveen Sood, Chairperson, Human Welfare and 
Community Action Commission 

Subject: SAFE Act 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution that improves the City of Berkeley’s provision of resources for 
survivors of sexual violence.  These steps are recommended to increase the 
accessibility of information and institutionalize support in cases of sexual 
violence.  Prioritizing the safety and wellness of our community, the Human 
Welfare and Community Action Commission moves to: 

1) Create a holistic City of Berkeley web portal that connects citizens to
health and wellness resources (physical, mental, and emotional),
reporting mechanisms, educational information, and alternative university
student resources.

2) Direct City Manager to investigate how Berkeley could facilitate
increasing the number of hospitals equipped to do sexual assault medical
exams necessary to collect ‘rape kit’ evidence.

3) Direct City Manager to ensure that Berkeley PD is now routinely and
regularly sending all “rape kits” to lab for testing, along the timelines for
example stated in AB 1517.

4) Increase coordination between the Berkeley Police Department and Bay
Area Women Against Rape through additional training, including official
rape crisis counselor certifications.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
The City of Berkeley will incur some costs associated with the manpower 
necessary to construct a resource webpage and investigate the plausibility of 
introducing rape kits to Berkeley hospitals.  Additionally, the BAWAR rape crisis 
counselor state-certification program traditionally costs $50 per individual for a 
66-hour program (unless the participant is a BAWAR volunteer).  As BPD and
BAWAR have a historically strong relationship, it is possible a reduced fee can
be negotiated for BPD officers, as well as financing for additional kits.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
As it stands, there is no cohesive platform that outlines the reporting structure, 
medical assistance, and counseling resources for sexual assault survivors on the 
City of Berkeley website.  This was also a recent criticism of UC Berkeley, which 
proceeded to implement a comprehensive portal that would allow for students to 
navigate the complicated and difficult process of addressing the aftermath of an 

Attachment E



assault.  The City should implement a similar page under the services tab of the 
Berkeley website, akin to survivorsupport.berkeley.edu.  This would provide 
increased knowledge in the public of how to respond in the case of a violent 
crime, as well as a more accessible avenue for survivors to locate and receive 
the support they require.   

Another shortcoming in the approach to dealing with sexual violence is lack of 
access to rape kits in Berkeley.  Crimes cannot be properly reported, investigated 
or punished without the data collected from rape kits, yet an enormous backlog of 
these kits has been reported in the Bay Area.  In March 2014, Assemblywoman 
Nancy Skinner’s AB 1517 encouraged stricter time limits for law enforcement and 
forensic laboratories to process and submit rape kits.  Attorney General Kamal 
Harris is currently sponsoring AB 1848, which will promote statewide tracking of 
rape kits.  However more needs to be done locally to ensure availability of this 
testing and expedite its processing.  Indeed, the nearest location for a forensic 
examination is at Highland Hospital, (there are no rape kits accessible in 
Berkeley itself).  Therefore, HWCAC would encourage an investigation into 
possibilities for the introduction of rape kits and trained personnel into Berkeley 
area hospitals, or the facilitation of easy access for Berkeley residents at other 
health centers.  Additionally, the City should investigate delays in processing 
rape kits at Berkeley Police Department.  On March 13, 2006, a front-page story 
in the San Francisco Chronicle detailed the facts surrounding a 2008 case in 
which DNA from a rape kit sat unprocessed at BPD for six years.   

The Berkeley Police Department stands at a vital juncture in the process of 
addressing sexual violence in our community.  In fact, BPD investigates an 
average of 40 sexual assault cases and 80 “other” sexual assault related cases 
per year.  Considering this rate of police interaction with sexual violence 
survivors, it is essential that officers are sufficiently trained to delicately handle 
these sensitive cases.  In addition to the general trainings that occur for BPD, 
there should also be at least one State Certified Rape Crisis Counselor present 
to provide the best possible assistance to those who have experienced often-
traumatizing instances of violence, as well as ongoing access to other trained 
counselors.   

BACKGROUND 
Over the past year, the news media, citizen movements, and the Obama 
administration has highlighted the prevalence of sexual assault in our country, 
particularly on college campuses, as a primary issue on the national agenda.  
More importantly, considering the marked increase (64%)* in reported rapes in 
Berkeley in 2015, it seems vital that addressing sexual assault also be at the 
forefront of the policy initiatives in City Council.  As such, the HWCAC would 
recommend that steps be taken to ensure rape prevention and equitable access 
to resources for survivors. 



ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
There are no identifiable environmental impacts or opportunities associated with 
the action suggested in this report.  

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The City should uphold its responsibility for the health and wellness of its citizens 
and provide the necessary support for the survivors of sexual violence.  
Preventing violence by ensuring safe communities, cooperating with the police, 
providing pre-emptive community education, and creating a city-wide culture of 
consent are critical elements for long-term comprehensive plan. Short-term 
action is also necessary; the lack of cohesive resources for survivors is a 
problem that can be immediately addressed.   In the aftermath of sexual 
violence, survivors should be able to easily access information and resources on 
the City of Berkeley website.   Interactions with the police should be a source of 
comfort and support in a trying time – thus, officers should be equipped with the 
proper tools to handle sensitive cases.  Medical help should be immediately 
available in our own city – so, while rape kit administration requires specific 
training and facilities, the City Council should look in to the feasibility of rape kit 
provision in Berkeley.  Much more work needs to be done to address, prevent, 
and respond to sexual violence, but these are proposed first steps on a road to 
improve assistance offered by the City of Berkeley. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
Alternative options include the City of Berkeley offering education opportunities 
such as consent workshops and sexual violence awareness classes.  However, 
much of this work is already accomplished successfully by local organizations 
such as BAWAR, and continued partnership with those groups is more beneficial 
than separate programming. 

CONTACT PERSON 
Wingyin Wong, Commission Secretary, HWCAC, (510) 981-5428 

Attachments: 
1: Resolution 

*Reported Rapes in Berkeley Over Five-Year Period

Year Number of rapes reported Change from previous year 

2011 20 

2012 39 +95%

2013 29 -25%

2014 25 -13.8%

2015 41 +64%



RESOLUTION NUMBER ########### 

SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE FOR EMPOWERMENT (SAFE) ACT 

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley believes that sexual violence is an 
infringement on the rights and human dignity of all people,  

WHEREAS, violence prevention requires a cultural shift centered 
around sexual assault awareness and consent education,  

WHEREAS, in cases of violence, the City is responsible for providing 
supportive care and assistance in order to guarantee the community’s 
wellbeing,  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Berkeley that 

1. The City Clerk will create a holistic web portal linked to the City
of Berkeley website that connects citizens to health and wellness
resources (physical, mental, and emotional), reporting
mechanisms, educational information, and alternative university
student resources.  This website shall contain links to
information about:

a. Seeking aid following an instance of sexual violence, including:
1. Medical care centers, contact information, and medical

processes,
2. Social services and crisis counseling information,
3. Safety and emergency contact for the Berkeley Police

Department;
b. Reporting sexual violence:

1. How to report to the police
2. A list of Federal Laws, policies, and reports on sexual

violence,
3. A list explaining which resources are confidential and which

will require reporting,
4. An explanation of confidentiality and anonymity in reporting

processes;
c. How to support a survivor:

1. Ways to respond,
2. Ways to take care of oneself when hearing about violence,
3. A list of resources supporters or survivors can turn to for

physical, mental, and emotional help;



d. Education:
1. Definitions of sexual violence in different contexts  (sexual

assault, rape, sexual harassment, domestic abuse, stalking,
etc.)

2. Resources for further education, including Bay Area Women
Against Rape (BAWAR) programs;

e. Student Reporting:
1. A link to the UC Berkeley webpage for student encounters

with sexual violence.  This site is an effective example that
can be mirrored in the City of Berkeley’s new centralized
resource page.  http://survivorsupport.berkeley.edu

2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that at least one BPD officer (preferably
working in the field of sexual violence) is trained as a State Certified
Rape Crisis Counselor.  Based on present certification levels and in
coordination with the Berkeley Police Department, ascertain an
appropriate number of BPD officers to go through the prerequisite
BAWAR certification.  These programs entail 66 hours of training to
fulfill the state requirements.  Also evaluate the necessary frequency
for general training sessions between BAWAR and BPD, seeking
possible avenues to further cooperation between the two groups;

3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager investigates
(including examining administrative procedures, fiscal costs, and
potential benefits) how Berkeley could facilitate increasing the number
of hospitals equipped to do sexual assault medical exams necessary to
collect ‘rape kit’ evidence.

4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager shall ensure that
Berkeley PD is now routinely and regularly sending all “rape kits” to
lab for testing, in accordance with timelines established in AB 1517.

http://survivorsupport.berkeley.edu/


http://www.sfgate.com/crime/article/Berkeley-mayor-asks-for-info-on-police-rape-kit-6974942.php

Berkeley mayor asks for details on police delay in rape kit
By Melody Gutierrez Updated 12:26 pm, Wednesday, March 23, 2016 

SACRAMENTO — Berkeley Mayor Tom Bates has asked the city manager and police chief fo

information regarding how rape kits are handled in the city after saying he was concerned to

learn that critical evidence in one case went unprocessed for six years.

Keith Kenard Asberry Jr., a 31-year-old Antioch man, faces multiple felony counts in a 2008 

kidnapping, rape, sexual assault and robbery of two teenagers in Berkeley. Alameda County 

District Attorney Nancy O’Malley said Berkeley police did not test the rape kit from that case until

her office asked law enforcement agencies to inventory their untested rape kits so they could be 

sent to a lab for testing.

Berkeley mayor Tom Bates listens to speakers during a Berkeley city council meeting in this file photo from 2014. Bates 
looking for answers on how rape kits are handled in Berkeley.

Page 1 of 3Berkeley mayor asks for details on police delay in rape kit - SFGate

4/13/2016http://www.sfgate.com/crime/article/Berkeley-mayor-asks-for-info-on-police-rape-kit-697...



The Chronicle wrote about the Berkeley case and the backlog of untested rape kits in a March 13 

story.

“I think the victims deserve to have an answer as to why this kit wasn’t tested,” said Assemblyman

Tony Thurmond, D-Richmond, who represents Berkeley. “It’s important to give closure. We need 

to send a message that every department will get these tested so this evidence is processed in a 

timely way to ensure that there aren’t future victims. At the same time, we have a responsibility to 

make sure we provide police departments with resources to test these kits.”

Charles Burress, a spokesman for Bates, said Tuesday that the mayor asked for the information 

from the chief and city manager and is waiting for their responses before commenting further. 

Capt. Andrew Greenwood said the Berkeley Police Department is concerned about the 

circumstances surrounding how the rape kit ended up not being tested and are looking into what 

happened.

“We take this seriously,” Greenwood said.

The Police Department has sent all of its rape kits for which the statute of limitations has not 

expired for testing and plans to continue to work with O’Malley’s office to upload the DNA from th

remaining kits to the national DNA database. At that point, Greenwood said there would be no 

rape kit backlog at the department.

“The old way of thinking about this was, ‘Do I need to submit this (rape kit) to make my case?’” 

Greenwood said. “The answer may be no, because we’ve made an arrest or we can’t locate the 

victim. The paradigm has changed. There is value in entering all DNA regardless.”

Defendant in database

The Police Department refused to provide The Chronicle with documents related its handling of 

the case, citing a section of the California Public Records Act that prohibits releasing “personnel, 

medical, or similar files, the disclosure of which would constitute an unwarranted invasion of 

personal privacy.”

The teens, who were 15 and 19, told police in 2008 that they were raped at gunpoint in their car 

and forced to drive to an ATM to withdraw $200. After the man left, they drove to a hospital, wher

police were called.

Page 2 of 3Berkeley mayor asks for details on police delay in rape kit - SFGate

4/13/2016http://www.sfgate.com/crime/article/Berkeley-mayor-asks-for-info-on-police-rape-kit-697...



O’Malley said once the rape kit was processed in 2014, a national DNA database linked the 

evidence to Asberry, who had been in the database of known and unknown criminals since a 2005

conviction for being a felon in possession of a firearm.

Bloodstain from 2015

DNA evidence also linked Asberry to a 2015 assault in Berkeley in which a 46-year-old woman 

fought off her attacker. Berkeley police tested a bloodstain found on the woman’s shirt to link him 

to that crime. Asberry was charged with burglary and attempted sexual assault in that case.

Asberry, who is representing himself in the case, is awaiting trial in Oakland. He is scheduled to 

appear in Alameda County Superior Court next Wednesday. 

Melody Gutierrez is a San Francisco Chronicle staff writer. Email: mgutierrez@sfchronicle.com

Twitter:@MelodyGutierrez

© 2016 Hearst Communications, Inc.

ADVERTISEMENT

Page 3 of 3Berkeley mayor asks for details on police delay in rape kit - SFGate

4/13/2016http://www.sfgate.com/crime/article/Berkeley-mayor-asks-for-info-on-police-rape-kit-697...



Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product 
Panel of Experts Commission 

Meeting Location: South Berkeley Senior Center 

2939 Ellis Street, Berkeley, CA 94703 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 

1947 Center Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510. 981.5300    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5395 
E-mail: publichealth@ci.berkeley.ca.us - - http://www.cityofberkeley.info/health/

APPROVED MINUTES 
Regular Meeting, Thursday, March 17, 2016 

The meeting convened at 6:40 p.m. with Chair Browne presiding over the meeting. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: 
Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Morales, 
Moore, Namkung, Rose, Scheider (arrived at 6:58pm), and 
Kruckel (temporary appointee) 

Absent:  None 

Excused: Commissioner Sinai 

Staff present:  Janet Berreman and Dechen Tsering 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Saeeda Khan, Strawberry Creek Lodge Foundation 
Steven Carr, Strawberry Creek Lodge Foundation 
William Samsel, Berkeley Youth Alternatives 

PRESENTATIONS 

Introduction to City Data Services by Dechen Tsering, SSBPPE Commission Secretary. 

ACTION ON MINUTES 
Approval of Minutes - Moved to approve the minutes of 2/18/16 as drafted. 
M/S/C: Commissioners Namkung/Fenstermacher 

Ayes: Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Moore, 
Morales, Namkung, and Rose 

Noes: None 
Abstain: Commissioner Kruckel (temporary appointee) 
Absent from vote: Commissioner Scheider 
Recused: None 
Excused: Commissioner Sinai 

Attachment F

mailto:publichealth@cityofberkeley.info
file://///cobnas1/shared-data$/Team-Folders/HCS-DHS(JMicallef)/COMMISSIONS/Commission-CommunityHealth/2013%20CHC/2013%20agendas%20and%20minutes/February/-%20http:/www.cityofberkeley.info/health/


Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts Commission 
Approved Minutes March 17, 2016 
Page 2 of 4  
 
 

Motion passed (6:45pm). 
 

 
ACTION ITEMS  
 

1. Moved to approve and adopt the changes made to the screening questions as 
discussed for rating proposals from community-based organizations.  

M/S/C: Commissioners Crawford/Namkung. 
 

Ayes: Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Kruckel 
(temporary appointee), Moore, Morales, Namkung, Scheider, 
and Rose 

Noes:   None  

Abstain:  None 

Absent from vote: None 

Recused:  None 

Excused:  Commissioner Sinai 

Motion passed (8:33 pm). 
 

2. Moved to adopt the following process:  
a. All Commissioners will receive a binder of proposals from CBOs. 
b. All Commissioners will review for Conflict of Interest as defined by 

the City of Berkeley.  
c. Any Commissioner with a Conflict of Interest will recuse and not 

score any proposals.  
d. All eligible Commissioner should come together on April 7th to 

discuss their scores and recommendations for funding.  
M/S/C: Commissioners Morales/Rose. 
 

Ayes: Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Kruckel 

(temporary appointee), Morales, Namkung, Scheider, and 

Rose  

Noes:  Commissioner Moore 

Abstain:  None 

Absent from vote: None 

Recused:  None 

Excused:  Commissioner Sinai  

Motion passed (8:45pm).  

 
3. Moved to extend the meeting by 20 minutes past 9pm.  

M/S/C: Commissioners Namkung/Moore. 
 



Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts Commission 
Approved Minutes March 17, 2016 
Page 3 of 4  
 
 

Ayes: 
Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Moore, 

Morales, Namkung, Scheider, and Rose 

Noes:  Commissioner Kruckel (temporary appointee) 

Abstain: None 

Absent from vote: None 

Recused: None 

Excused: Commissioner Sinai 

Motion passed (8:46pm).  
 

4. Moved to move the April 21st SSBPPE Commission meeting to April 7th.  
M/S/C: Commissioners Crawford/Kruckel. 
 

Ayes:  

Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Kruckel 

(temporary appointee), Morales, Namkung, Scheider, and 

Rose 

Noes:  Commissioner Moore 

Abstain: None 

Absent from vote: None 

Recused: None 

Excused: Commissioner Sinai 

Motion passed (8:48pm).  
 

5. Moved to ask Public Health Division to explore the possibility of 
administering the Youth Risk Behavioral Survey to Berkeley Youth and 
redirect $24,900 (mini-grants allocation in FY15-16 that received no 
bidders) toward this effort. 

M/S/C: Commissioners Crawford/Morales. 
 

Ayes:  

Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Kruckel 

(temporary appointee), Moore, Morales, Namkung, 

Scheider, and Rose 

Noes:  None 

Abstain: None 

Absent from vote: None 

Recused: None 

Excused: Commissioner Sinai 

Motion passed (9:09pm).  
 



Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts Commission 
Approved Minutes March 17, 2016 
Page 4 of 4  
 
 

6. Moved to support the recommendations for commission process 
improvements made by the Human Welfare and Community Action 
Commission to Council as per Action #6 in the 3/17/16 meeting agenda.  

M/S/C: Commissioners Namkung/Moore. 
 

Ayes:  
Commissioners Browne, Crawford, Fenstermacher, Moore, 

Morales, Namkung, Scheider, and Rose 

Noes:  None 

Abstain: Commission Kruckel (temporary appointee) 

Absent from vote: None 

Recused: None 

Excused: Commissioner Sinai 

Motion passed (9:15pm).  
 
 
NEXT MEETING 
The next special meeting will be on Thursday, April 7, 2016 at 6:30 pm at the North 
Berkeley Senior Center. The regular meeting scheduled for April 21st will be cancelled.  
According to the City of Berkeley Commissioners Manual, “any meeting not on the 
regular meeting schedule is a special meeting”.  
 
This meeting was adjourned at 9:16 p.m.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, Dechen Tsering, Commission Secretary 
Minutes approved on April 7, 2016 
 
 




